### MINUTES San Bernardino County BEHAVIORAL HEALTH COMMISSION MEETING February 02, 2023 12:00-2:00 pm

<u>Commissioners Present</u>: Dr. Monica Caffey, Dr. Akin Merino, Lynn Summers, Veatrice Jews, Gil Navarro, Samuel Shoup on behalf of Supervisor Col. Cook

Excused Absence: Lorrie Denson, Pastor Mark Graham, Michael Grabhorn

#### Absent: Jennifer Spence

<u>**Guests:</u>** Dr. Alyce Belford-Saldana, Amazing Place Clubhouse, Andres Jimenez, Clifford Craig, Dr. Jeramy Sanquist, Dr. Joshua Taylor, Dr. Rebecca Scott-Young, Kathyah Gabriel Kaysarn, Lizette Vazquez, Marlanda Johnson, Meghan Frawley, Oneta Wilson, Paola D'Aloia-Pascuzzo, Pathways Clubhouse, Clerk Sheena Felix, Wolfgang Hall – NAMI, Allison Cunningham, Andre Bossieux, Arthur Shaw III, Candice Alvarado, Jennifer Pacheco, Jolena Grider, Kayla Bagby, Kristen Mungcal, Lindsey Drake, Miranda Canseco, Misty Harris, Natalie Fagan, Nicole Rice, Nicole Woodward, Rafael Villa, Sonia Navarro, Steven Jackson, Susan Achuff, Dr. Tim Hougen, Bethanne Fishell, Cheryl McAdam, Tina Entz, Dylan Mckelroy, Francisco Sanchez, Kimberly Morrow, Lauretta Ross, Linda Hart, Liz Maldonado, Marina Espinosa, Marybel Valadez, Michael Knight, Mitzy Vazquez, Nathan Trujillo, Sean Colony, Serenity Clubhouse, Team House Asia Hayes, Team House Greg Nyx, Ashley Patterson, Blessing Chinedu-Obi, Brian Hermosillo, DBH-PIO, Desert Stars Clubhouse, Farrah Northcott, Ilse Silva, Jennifer Esparza, Julie Sanchez, La Keisha Mosley, Linda Marie Griffey, Michelle McDonald, Monica Rosas, Valerie Maybrier</u>

Minutes recorded by Sheena Felix, Clerk of the Behavioral Health Commission (BHC).

#### CALL TO ORDER/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/ROLE CALL

Chair, Dr. Monica Caffey called the meeting to order at 12:01 p.m. and led the group in the pledge of allegiance, roll call followed and was conducted by Clerk Sheena Felix.

#### CULTURAL COMPETENCE AWARD OF EXCELLENCE

Lizette Vazquez with the Office of Equity and Inclusion (OEI) stated she would like to introduce the Community Excellence Award by the Cultural Competence Advisory Committee (CCAC), every quarter the Committee likes to recognize someone in the community that exemplifies cultural and linguistic competency. For the fourth quarter, Lizette presented the award to Dr. Monica Caffey, Chair of the Behavioral Health Commission. She was awarded this award in the virtual/in-person CCAC Meeting in December. Lizette shared what Cultural Competence means to Dr. Caffey in her own words, Chair, Dr. Caffey stated she was not expecting this and it is such an honor. She explained that she appreciates OEI, Maribel Gutierrez, the CCAC, and of course the community and all those who have come together and been apart of the good work to advocate for access to services for all in our County. She was not expecting this and is eternally grateful for receiving this honorary award.

### PUBLIC COMMENTS

Clerk Felix stated no public comments were submitted via mail, email, or telephone, and none in real time. Chair Dr. Caffey reminded attendees to email at <u>BHC-Contact@dbh.sbcounty.gov</u> for any public comments.

### CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT

Chair Dr. Caffey stated that currently they are excited about the Youth and Children Behavioral Health Initiative that was launched last March, there is a focus and priority on not only school based mental health services but access to youth services around counties and organizations being able to have the opportunity to provide direct services in problematic areas as well as youth becoming leaders and advocates for their own mental health. In that capacity, she has created Student State of Mind which is a curriculum-based program for students in Chaffey Unified School high school where they spend four hours focusing on what they believe are priorities, then they are able to share it back with the county for services but also within their family systems and community. They are pushing beyond being peers but the youth are the voices around this and the program is called Student Transfer Outreach, and Mentor Program (STOMP) which represents a student state of mind program, this is out of the initiative from the state California Youth and Behavioral Health

Services, she encouraged everyone to go to the website for more information and put more information in the chat because the website outlines the vision and what the Governor's Office has invested which is 18.9 million dollars focusing on priorities for youth behavioral health, it is the first time the state has done something specifically like this outside of the school and into the community. She also wanted to mention that she is very excited for the peer specialist certification process, that many have been able to not only get their certification by taking the exam at the state level but also opening up to be able to work within the county systems at an accelerated rate. Chair Dr. Caffey stated the peer specialist certification process is something that is near and dear to her heart as Kristen Mungcal knows, she shared she is excited for those to be compensated for this work and be a part of the system, their voices, input and being able to value the peer experience and consumer voice is what drives what we do.

## **COMMISSIONERS' REPORT**

### First District:

No Commissioners present for the First District.

## Second District:

No Commissioners present for the Second District.

## Third District:

No Commissioners present for the Third District.

## Fourth District:

Commissioner Dr. Akin Merino gave everyone February blessings; she shared that they held the 4<sup>th</sup> District Advisory Committee (DAC) Meeting in January, and they had a great presentation on Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) 3-year integrated plan, very thorough presentation on different components, different programs, community program planning schedules, and good conversation on several aspects of that during the Q & A. She stated that she attended an online presentation with Merrill Crisis Stabilization Unit instead of a physical walkthrough for an overview of the work they do, Lisa at Merrill gave a very robust presentation on the work they do and it seems like a well-funded program that collaborates with hospitals, they services around 700 clients a month and average about 400 clients per month but increasing. She shared that she wants to see more centers like this in San Bernardino and this is something she supports. She stated that conducts a monthly mental health Q & A and she is working with the department to set up mental health presentation for the community, it is online, and everyone can join, she has invited the Coalition Against Sexual Exploitation (CASE) to come and talk about sexual trafficking, she is excited to see if that work out for March.

### Fifth District:

Commissioner Veatrice Jews shared that she had some personal issues to tend to in the month of January and limited the time she could be involved however, she was able to attend the California Reducing Disparities Project and it is a statewide project to identify and implement strategies to reduce mental health disparities in 5 ethnic groups, those groups were: African American, Asian American, Native Hawaiian, Latinx, LGBTQ+, and the American Indian/Alaskan Native communities. It was just data on some challenges pre and post covid and the effectiveness of this program. It was very interesting to hear from the different groups and their challenges and how they adapted to those challenges to render mental health programs that were needed. She explained that she was not able to attend the 5<sup>th</sup> District DAC meeting and Vice Chair Navarro was able to Chair that meeting, she stated it was a great and interesting discussion from what she heard.

Vice Chair Gil Navarro stated as Commissioner Jews mentioned he Chaired the 5<sup>th</sup> District DAC meeting in her absence. He shared that the department did a great presentation on comprehensive services, this is the type of presentations he thinks they should take the time to have the department present to different public agency meetings whether it is school board or city council, he stated that it is amazing all the resources the department has that are available to the community and thinks it is critical that the community knows of all the type of resources available to utilize as there may be different segments of the community that may not be aware of that. He shared his personal report and stated that he is looking forward to the presentation for the wellness centers, he explained that he is convinced the school districts need those centers to deal with undiagnosed mental health manifestations that affect our young people in the school system. He stated to remember those young people are our future and he doesn't believe in any throw away kid, do they have issues yeah, and we need to find out what it is. He stated that maybe many people don't know the federal regulation called Child Find it is learning or mental health. By law they have to search and serve private school whether it is religious or otherwise, that is the law. We have a great federal regulation supporting if we can get the effort to reach out to those agencies and make them aware of what is available through the department of mental health for the county. It is already in place we just have to provide it as a

resource, he has been supporting this for a number of years, he stated this affects young people who eventually grow up to be adults, if it is not treated then as adults, it becomes more of a severe issue. Commissioner Navarro also stated that he believes a lot of incarcerated individuals have undiagnosed mental health concerns, and if they were treated earlier in life they may not be in prison or jail, and he feel very strongly about that.

Commissioner Lynn Summers stated this is the beginning of 2023, she asked everyone to think about their mental health, mental health means time, pay attention to your time and calendar, her month has already started out crazy by missing a couple of things. She stated to be kind to yourself, stress is also a huge component on our mental health. She attended the 5<sup>th</sup> District DAC meeting and shared that it was very informative, she was contacted by the local Sheriff's Department because they know that she does behavioral health and also because she is a famer. They wanted to see how they could come up with some ideas on how to help with people who are incarcerated that are leaving out of the prison system, if there is something that can be done to help with transitioning being farming. They are starting to see that behavioral health and mental well-being working with soil helps with the transition. She stated she isn't exactly sure what they are looking for but will bring it back in the next couple of months.

Chair Caffey thanked Commissioner Summers for the reminder to ground yourself and taking care of their mental wellness while trying to navigate so many obligations and for sharing her report. She stated she appreciates all the work being done.

Tab 6: Review Minutes from October 06, 2022APPROVEDMotion/Second: Akin Merino/Gil NavarroAYES: Dr. Monica Caffey, Veatrice Jews, Lynn SummersASBSTAIN:ABSENT: Pastor Mark Graham, Michael Grabhorn, Lorrie Denson, Jennifer Spence

Review Minutes from November 03, 2022 **APPROVED** Motion/Second: Akin Merino/Gil Navarro AYES: Dr. Monica Caffey, Veatrice Jews, Lynn Summers ASBSTAIN: Gil Navarro ABSENT: Pastor Mark Graham, Michael Grabhorn, Lorrie Denson, Jennifer Spence

Review Minutes from January 05, 2023 **APPROVED** Motion/Second: Akin Merino/Gil Navarro AYES: Monica Caffey, Veatrice Jews, Lynn Summers ASBSTAIN: ABSENT: Pastor Mark Graham, Michael Grabhorn, Lorrie Denson, Jennifer Spence

### SUBJECT MATTER PRESENTATION:

 Tab 7: Mental Health Wellness Centers at the School Districts

 Deputy Director, Dr. Tim Hougen – Outpatient Clinic and Youth Services:

 Dr. Hougen explained that he is presenting on Wellness Centers however, Wellness Centers are not operated by DBH, and we do not have authority over them. He stated he will explain efforts statewide and countywide and provide further information on the topic.

- The term "Wellness Center" and "Health Center" are often used interchangeably
- Differences between the two are defined as:
  - o Wellness Center may provide any singular or combination of services
    - Example: Mindfulness activities or the availability of a calming room
  - Health Center must provide two different types of services
    - Mental health and preventative dental care
  - DBH primarily facilitates school based mental health services through:
    - Student Assistance Program (SAP)
    - School Aged Treatment Services (SATS)

- DBH does not staff nor fund any Health or Wellness Centers however, Wellness Centers refer students to DBH's programs, these programs may provide group activities at a Wellness Center
- California School-Based Health Alliance (CSBHA) is a statewide nonprofit organization that supports efforts to implement School
  Based Health/Wellness Centers. They do a great job with publications: <u>https://www.schoolhealthcenters.org</u>
- Materials have been created to provide detailed assistance to Local Education Agencies (LEAs) interested in planning/creating a center. For Example:
  - $\circ$   $\;$  From Vision to Reality: How to build a school Health Center from the ground up
  - Benefits of School Health/Wellness Centers:
    - Easy access to care
    - Focus on cost effectiveness
    - Reaching vulnerable populations
- School Health/Wellness Centers Statewide Information:
  - o 293 Identified school Health/Wellness Centers in California
    - 39% are in High Schools
    - 21% in Elementary Schools
    - 10% are in Middle Schools
    - 25% Located offsite but are "school linked"
  - $\circ$   $\;$  Examples of services that may be provided in School Health/ Wellness Centers:
    - Medical
    - Mental Health
    - Dental Prevention/Treatment
    - Reproductive Health
    - Health Education
    - Youth Engagement
- School Based Health Alliance website lists 9 centers in San Bernardino County:

Pacific SBHC Alternative H.S. Wellness Initiative: Sierra High School	Pacific High School Sierra High School	San Bernardino San Bernardino
Adelanto Health Center	Westside Park Elementary School	Adelanto
Kids Come First Community Clinic	School-Linked	Ontario
A.B. Miller School Adolescent Clinic	Fontana A.B. Miller High School	Fontana
FOHI Adolescent Clinic	Fontana High School	Fontana
Fontana Unified School District School	FUSD District Office	Fontana
Based Health Center		
Kaiser Adolescent Clinic	Henry J. Kaiser High School	Fontana
Chino Valley Unified School District	CVUSD Adult School	Chino

- They also have a full list of all centers in California, there is also a lot more going on in the county outside of these nine centers listed
- Potential Options to Fund a Wellness Center:
  - o LEAs
    - Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)
    - Local Education Agency Medi-Cal Billing Option Program (LEA-BOP)
    - School Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (SMAA)
- Public Health
  - o Case Management
  - o Outreach

- o Reproductive Health
- Federal Qualified Health Centers (FQHC)
  - Separate from MCPs and MHPs
  - Opportunity for a location to provide specified services such as medical, dental, mental health, they do not have to do
    it all
  - Medi-Cal/Medi-Caid are billed directly for services and this is an option that exists in rural areas to create a free standing clinic, currently there are zero Health/Wellness centers that are funded by IEHP on school campuses
  - o Also able to work with DBH; create a contract where DBH is able to fund the mental health services with them
    - there are 5 different school districts contracted with DBH to provide Medi-Cal mental health services none of which are operating Health/Wellness centers at this time
- County Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCPs)
  - Student BH Incentive Program (SBHIP)
  - o DHCS funding option for MCPs to implement structural interventions to increase School Based Services
  - o In SBC this has been coordinated by IEHP, Molina, and San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools (SBCSS)
  - o 14 Intervention options, 1 of which focuses on Wellness Centers
  - If application approved by DHCS, then IEHP, Molina, and SBCSS will be facilitating the Wellness Center efforts for the following LEAs:
    - Ontario-Montclair School District
    - Provisional Accelerated Learning (PAL) Academy
    - Rialto Unified School District
    - San Bernardino City Unified School District
    - Victor Valley Union High School District
  - o SBHIP emphasizes that services must be available to all students regardless of insurance
- County Medi-Cal Mental Health Plans (MHPs)
- County Efforts to increase Wellness Centers
  - SBCSS working with school districts
  - o Local districts are consulting with California School-Based Health Alliance (CSBHA)
  - o Multiple districts collaborating with SBCSS and CSBHA to discuss and share efforts
    - Implemented medical telehealth services for students in collaboration with Hazel

# Q & A:

Vice Chair Navarro stated that he has worked with Dr. Hougen with a lot of mental health concerns that have come with a variety of his families and has been instrumental in helping to resolve those issues with particular mental health agencies and wanted to thank Dr. Hougen for his work and support. He stated that he was very impressed with this presentation, and the best thing he could have done was request this to be on the agenda. He expressed that he is concerned with the SBCSS's effort, fortunately he has a good relationship with one of the county board members and plans to share this report with them. Back to SBCUSD, there is a non-profit called I see, you see that went out of their way to make a big outside workshop that was promoting a Wellness Center and also have a nurse present to provide services, he is impressed with this effort but he is looking for Wellness Centers that deals with mental health concerns at every school, he thinks this is what Rialto is doing and understands this takes staff and money. The helpfulness of the Wellness Center that doesn't provide therapy services, there is a federal regulation in place called Child Find in place which is search and serve. If there is a student that shows up with mental manifestations or mental health concerns, they can now utilize the federal regulation of pursuing the opportunity to assist the student because there are other things in place educationally such as a Student Study Team Meeting (SST) which is already in place. This mandates the student, parent, school psychologist, nurse, and school administrator to brainstorm to help the child. Then, the law says after a reasonable amount of time if nothing is working from the intervention, they are supposed to rule out a suspected disability, recommend to the parent to get their child assessed for special ed, and generally through the assessment whether it is learning disability or potential mental health disability it will come out of that. So, there is a process in place that can be utilized at the Wellness Center when a student is identified to have issues, this is why he thinks a Wellness Center is something good to have in place so that way they can get started identifying the student with some issues that someone can recognize that it may be a potential manifestation of mental health. He Stated that he was so impressed by this presentation that he is going to request Clerk Sheena Felix to print copies of this presentation so that he can share it with different school districts, especially about the grant money, they like to have free money.

- Dr. Hougen wanted to clarify that the grant came out and has already been processed, the school districts mentioned are the
  only ones that have access to the grant at this point in time. He wanted to do a shout out for the efforts of IEHP, Molina, SBCSS
  in reaching out to the school districts because IEHP and Molina serve Riverside and San Bernardino County. In the beginning
  with the SBHIP process there was a question of which districts were going to be included in this process including charter
  schools. San Bernardino County had 42 submissions to participate in this process and Riverside County had 6. All the districts
  know of SBHIP many were not chosen due to the nature of the grant.
- Vice Chair Navarro agreed and stated he as an additional fact, there is a very active charter school association for the state that
  is active is SB County, Fatima appears at the County Board of Education with an update on charter schools, then you have
  Barbara Hale a selected County Board Member for Riverside School Board, she is an officer of the Charter School Association
  and he has a good relationship with her, so we have people in place that can utilize any information available on Wellness
  Centers. Vice Chair Navarro stated to Chair Dr. Caffey that he is so impressed by this presentation.
- Commissioner Dr. Akin Merino was thankful for the presentation and for the hope that was included in the presentation for what's to come because what is right now is not what we want but we'll get Wellness Centers. She stated that when we look at wellness dimensions and the different dimensions of wellness, which includes mental health but not only mental health, can it allow different collaborations from different groups and places, she saw anger management on there which is mental health but thinking in terms of what young people care about that can bring them into centers, the environment is a part of wellness. She shared they are working on a project allowing students to cultivate wellness gardens, maybe bring in dimensions of Wellness Centers and what happens in the centers, so students actually utilize them. She stated that there are initiatives where clinics or counselors are on school campus and students are just not visiting these places, it is a fact that they do not participate in what is on campus and not consumers of what is being presented to them. So, when there are conversations on how to design Wellness Centers, wellness is more than mental health, so take some of those other areas of wellness and she thinks that students will be more engaged. She shared she is hopeful that in the process and moving forward we need to make sure these Wellness Centers are student friendly.
- Dr. Hougen stated that one of the components that gets tracked is that you engage in the component for example, a wellness
  garden, that is the slice that needs to permeate everything you do so that you can attract them. There are anger management
  programs but we do not have any place that the youth can walk into, feel comfortable, then be introduced to anger management
  programs. What we do have is a system where anger management is identified for the youth, then they are referred to those
  services. So, what Commissioner Dr. Akin Merino is talking about in terms of youth engagement is something that in essence
  is attractive enough to pull in the youth for whatever that activity is that might be good for them, gardening, or yoga, whatever
  that activity may be, and then from there that comfort allows them to access the other services, Dr. Hougen agreed with
  Commissioner Dr. Akin Merino on this.
- Chair Dr. Caffey read a comment from the chat stating cultural factors that were mentioned or need to be considered that come into play in order to build trust. Chair Dr. Caffey stated there are various components to thew medical system and the way this is done must be age appropriate, which is very true. That is why the youth's voice needs to be apart of the conversation whenever we are making decisions for their lives. She thanked Dr. Hougen for the presentation.

## NEW BUSINESS - ACTION ITEM(S)

Identify Commissioner to Prepare Presentation Findings:

• Vice Chair, Gil Navarro volunteered to complete this month's memo of findings.

### Tab 8 Present 2023 Election of Officers

Clerk Sheena Felix requested permission from Madam Chair Dr. Caffey to open the floor to Commissioner, Dr. Akin Merino as the Chair of the Election of Officer Committee. Madam Chair agreed.

Commissioner Akin Merino insured there was a quorum, then asked Clerk Sheena Felix to read the Slate of Officers as presented to the public. Clerk Sheena Felix listed the following members that were nominated for Officer positions: Chair, Dr. Monica Caffey, Vice Chair, Gil Navarro, Secretary, Jennifer Spence, Treasurer, Lorrie Denson.

Commissioner Dr. Akin Merino asked Clerk Felix to assist with the voting portion of this process, Commissioner Navarro asked if appropriate can he make a motion to accept all the nominees. Clerk Sheena Felix stated that she will call on each commissioner for their vote, then voting commenced. All Commissioners present voted "Aye" for those nominated for the 2023 Election of Officers.

The voting resulted in the following Officers for the 2023 Election of Officers: Chair, Dr. Monica Caffey, Vice Chair, Gil Navarro, Secretary, Jennifer Spence, Treasurer, Lorrie Denson.

Commissioner Dr. Akin Merino congratulated Officers for coming back for another year of service, Vice Chair Gil Navarro and Chair Dr. Caffey thanked Commissioners for their support and continued confidence in their roles. Chair Dr. Monica Caffey stated that both Commissioner Lorrie Denson and Jennifer Spence feel the same but are away on medical leave.

 Tab 9: Approval to Pay California Association of Local Mental Health Boards/Commissions Annual Dues \$1,500

 APPROVED

Motion/Second: Gil Navarro/ Lynn Summers AYES: Veatrice Jews, Dr. Monica Caffey, Dr. Akin Merino ASBSTAIN: ABSENT: Pastor Mark Graham, Michael Grabhorn, Lorrie Denson, Jennifer Spence

## DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Assistant Director Michael Knight provided the following report on behalf of the Director, Dr. Georgina Yoshioka:

- Dr. Georgina Yoshioka and Dr. Monica Caffey continue to conduct their monthly meetings and discuss issues related to the Behavioral Health Commission and services needed in the community.
- Vendors are encouraged to register in ePro to be notified of all possible bid opportunities. For more information on this process and how to register. Clerk Sheena Felix listed more information for ePro in the chat.
  - Reminder to Commissioners if you participate on a review panel, the importance of confidentiality during the review process. Reviewers remain confidential. Attendees are not confidential, if requested during the Q &A portion, the Agency attendees are listed publicly.
- Reminder public comments are not to be responded to directly, however will be documented in the minutes for the official record.
- Reminder public inquiries including requests for data are to be made: <u>DBH-PublicRealtions@dbh.sbcounty.gov</u>.
  - Public Records Act Request Policy: https://wp.sbcounty.gov/dbh/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/BOP3007.pdf

## Legislation Updates

None

## **DBH Updates**

RFPs – Will continue to advise when released.

## Public Relations and Outreach Update – Miranda Canseco

- Demonstration of DBH Website and where to find resources and the application to become a Commissioner.
  - Miranda proceeded to walk the Commissioners through the process of accessing the DBH Website, BHC Website, and the Clerk of the Board Website to access the application to become a Commissioner.
  - She shared a flyer created to promote current vacancies in the BHC.

Chair Dr. Monica Caffey stated for those who are interested in seeking a position as a Commissioner there are currently vacancies in the 2<sup>nd</sup> and 3<sup>rd</sup> Districts, the 3<sup>rd</sup> District represents: Barstow, Grand Terrace, Highland, Loma Linda, Needles, Redlands, Yucaipa, Yucca Valley, Twentynine Palms, and the rest of the Morongo Basin, portions of Colton and San Bernardino Mountain Communities. The 2<sup>nd</sup> District represents: Fontana, Rancho Cucamonga, and Northern Upland. She stated they would like for anyone to please use the

information on the website to apply so they can get these appointments and have your voices be apart of advocating those in need of services and also to support DBH and the Board of Supervisors.

Questions regarding DBH Public Relations, please email dbh pio@dbh.sbcounty.gov

• Office of Equity and Inclusion Update – Next Meeting (March 2023)

### **OUTSIDE AGENCY REPORTS**

- Linda Hart with the African American Coalition wanted to congratulate the Officers, she wanted to asked Dr. Hougen what part parents will be able to play in accessing information and records of their children when they are going through that process.
- Dr. Hougen stated that it would be quite variable depending on what services are actually being provided and the youth that are being served. So, when you are talking about a 10 -11-year-old, it would be a situation where if any type of service that would require consent, the parents would have to be involved. For one of the suggestions such as a wellness garden, that may not require parent consent, many adolescents have the right to consent for treatment on various things so it is something that would have to be handled on a case by case basis.
- Vice Chair Gil Navarro asked to recommend strongly that Outside Agencies servicing the community be asked to take turns
  doing their presentation to the general meeting, letting us know challenges and how they are operating. He shared he feels this
  will be very informative such as Victor Counseling and Southcoast, he knows these two are very active in the County. Chair Dr.
  Monica Caffey made note.
- Chair, Dr. Monica Caffey thanked everyone for there invaluable time, stated please do not hesitate to reach out for public comment on the website, she is looking forward to an active 2023 and get information out on areas of need, if there are any areas the public would like them to look into please reach out.

## **ADJOURNMENT**

Meeting adjourned at 1:36 p.m.

*Dr. Monica Caffey, Chair* Behavioral Health Commission Sheena Felix – Clerk of the Commission Department of Behavioral Health